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19 March 2012 

 

Members of the Joint Regional Planning Panel 

Sydney East Region 

C/o Wes van der Gardner 

Roche Group 

 

Via email 

 

Dear Panel Members 

Re: Development Application for 100 – 102 Elliot Street Balmain  

GMU has been approached by Roche to review the bulk and scale of the proposed development application in response to the generally 
favourable planning report by Leichhardt Council to the Joint Regional Planning Panel. The report recommends approval of the application with 
deferred commencement conditions of consent. 

The relevant condition of consent that has been proposed by Council that is considered in this submission is set out below: 

5. Amended plans are to be submitted incorporating the following amendments: 

a) Dwellings 3.12, 3.13 and 3.14 within the third level of Building E which front Broderick Street and their associated open space 
areas/terraces and lift access and entry foyers shall be deleted. As a consequence of this amendment: 

i) The front wall and general roof height (the roof height above the dwellings on the second floor) of Building E on Broderick 
Street shall not exceed RL 25.78 AHD. 

ii) The built form, elevational detailing and materials and general design of Building E on Broderick Street below RL 25.78 
AHD shall not alter from that depicted on the architectural plans listed in Condition 7 of this consent. 

iii) To facilitate access to dwelling 3.11 a reconfiguration of dwellings 3.10 and 3.11 will be required to permit access from 
the northern entry foyer of Building E and  

iv) The location of the southern wall of dwelling 3.11 is to remain in its proposed location and amended to detail finishes 
consistent with the external finishes detailed within the development. 

The reasons given within the body of the report for the reduction in massing in this location to Broderick Street is summarised here as: 

 To better reflect the existing built forms on Broderick Street so Building E is more responsive to the context of each street that it 
addresses. 

 Building E clearly presents as a fourth level to Broderick Street which adds height and bulk to Building E particularly when viewed from 
adjoining properties. The height and form is not considered acceptable given the maximum 3 storey forms fronting Broderick Street. 

 A three storey parapet form will provide a better and appropriate fit contextually with the height, form and appearance of the existing 
dwelling stock along Broderick Street. 
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Comments 

The comments provided in this report only relate to the specific issue of bulk in relation to Building E that is raised in the conditions of approval. 
Brief consideration of the proposal indicates that it has been developed to provide a reasonably sensitive response to the area given the role of 
Elliot Street as a connector to the ferry and the scale and massing of the Department of Housing developments adjacent to it. 

In forming a view about how appropriate the fourth level of Building E is in the context of Broderick Street it is important to consider the form and 
appearance of the houses to the south of the street. 

The street comprises a mix of architectural styles but has a relative consistency in the lot width and finer grain character. The houses range from 
1-3 storeys in height with the majority providing 3 storeys in scale with pitched roof forms as seen below. More recent additions to the street 
have terminated the buildings in flat roofs above a 3 storey form, others are 2 storeys with pitched roof and raised ground floors that deliver the 
overall 3 storey scale. At least one of the properties is 3 storeys with the upper floor contained within the roof form as expressed at the gable. 

 

        

Existing massing of houses in Broderick Street 

It is understood that the overall height of these dwellings ranges from RL 22.12 AHD up to RL 27.57 AHD. The houses step up and down along 
the street but three of the properties have ridge heights closer to the greater AHD height. Building E is generally located opposite these taller 
dwellings and in fact emulates their grouping in terms of the building length. 

The extent of the top floor (being the third floor as noted in the drawings) is less than Building E overall as it setback some 8.6m from the 
western end of the building. This pulls the third floor massing further back up the street. Review of the officer’s report suggests that the concern 
over this floor is not view impact but the scale of the development relative to Broderick Street. The report recommends that a parapet form with 
upper floor setback to the alignment of Apartment 3.11 it is assumed. This will require reconfiguration of Unit 3.10 and is likely to result in the 
loss of two dual orientation units for two corner units.  

As perceived from Broderick Street Building E is actually only 2.5 storeys high with the 3rd floor contained within the zinc roof form. This is seen 
in the Broderick Street elevation on drawing A.01.D. The lowest floor of the building steps down the hillside and is not perceived from the street. 
The first floor is the floor which effectively creates the ground floor of the building. So the perceived scale of the building to Broderick Street is 3 
storeys to its western end and 2.5 storey plus roof to its eastern end. 

The composition of this building and its form also relates to Building F.  Building F is located at the intersection of the two streets and has a 2 – 
2.5 storey form with again a habitable roof form. Building E in its current design and height provides a sense of transition that responds to the 
topography from the higher ridge line of Building F down to the lower height of Building E at the western end and then down Building D and 
Building B near the water. Building E currently has a pitched mansard roof form as does Building F, D and E and as do most of the terrace 
houses on the southern side of the street. This is an important architectural element in tying the street together and achieving an appropriate 
design response to the street. 

Deletion of the proposed units would change this sense of transition as well as the composition of the building grouping to the street. The result 
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would be that Building E would take on a particularly elongated form due to its overall length with only a parapet rather than a pitched roof. It 
would also be the only parapet form along that side of the streetscape. In my opinion this would be discordant and would create a perception of 
length to the building that would not be in character with the street without effecting a major change in height and scale. The current design 
moderates the building length and height visually by use of the pitched roof form.  

The other point is that a parapet height is not going to offer such a difference in height that it would achieve a great deal. The proposed ridge 
height for instance for Building E is RL 28.5m AHD. The floor level of level 3 is at RL 24.78 AHD. A parapet would need to have a balustrade 
height of at least 1m which will give it an RL of 25.78 AHD – the difference is 2.72m. Given the roof form pitches back from the street the 
massing will not read as substantially different massing and the proposal to provide a parapet will result in the built form being taller at the edge 
of the building. 

The relative level of the ridge lines for Building E average at RL 28.5 AHD. The roof ridges of the houses to the south opposite the property are 
RL 27.57, RL 26.89, RL 22.12 and RL 26.39. The difference between these heights and the proposal can be seen in the Broderick Street 
elevation as dotted lines.  

Study of the elevation shows that the relative difference is reasonably minor (from 900mm – 2.1m for the 2-3 storey houses) and from the street 
level would not be perceived as a significant difference that would incite concerns about bulk and scale.  

The roof form proposed is not dissimilar to the steeply pitched roofs seen on many terraces and heritage items around the area. The massing of 
the roof is the element that reads in the street rather than whether it is occupied by habitable space in this instance. Given the predominant 
expression is that of “roof” rather than a 4th floor, the design proposed is preferable from an urban design viewpoint to a parapet roof edge with 
setback upper floor. 

Conclusion and Recommendation 

The overall form of Building E as a 2.5 – 2 storey building with roof in Broderick Street is considered to be an appropriate height response to the 
terrace houses on the opposite side of the street. In terms of its 2-3 storey scale it is not out of place with the 2-3 storey houses and the pitched 
roof form assists in tying it into the street and also moderating the length of the building. 

The design offers a high quality roofing material and the dormer windows for the units in the roof are subservient to the roof overall ensuring that 
it reads as a roof first rather than an upper floor. The proposal to delete the units in favour of a parapet edge to the roof is not favoured as it will 
impact on the overall architectural character and consistency of both the proposal and the streetscape for little real benefit in height difference. 

Therefore it is recommended that the Joint Regional Planning Panel approve the development without the imposition of Condition 5a). Should 
there be any questions regarding this letter please do not hesitate to contact the author on 0407 007 444. 

 

Yours Sincerely,  

 

 

Ms Gabrielle Morrish         

Managing Director                 

GM Urban Design & Architecture Pty Ltd  








